
SCRUTINY : REGENERATION, 
PLANNING AND 

COUNTRYSIDE MEETING
2.30 pm TUESDAY, 19TH APRIL, 2016

COUNCIL CHAMBER

Please note that today’s meeting will be recorded. 
 

This recording will not be broadcast on the Authority’s internet 
as it will only be used for training purposes by the

Democratic Services Department.

The Public Seating areas will be in view of the Camera and, by entering 
the Chamber and using the Public Seating Area, Members of the Public 

are consenting to being filmed.

This Agenda has been prepared by the Democratic Services Department. Any 
member of the public requiring information should contact the department on 
(01685) 725203 or email democratic@merthyr.gov.uk.

Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda 
can be found on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers.

A G E N D A

1. Apologies for Absence 

2. Declarations of Interest (including whipping 
declarations) 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


Members of this Committee are reminded of their 
personal responsibility to declare any personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained 
in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of 
the Local Government Act 2000, the Council’s 
Constitution and the Members’ Code of Conduct.   
In  addition Members must declare any prohibited 
party whip which the Member has been given in 
relation to the meeting as per the Local 
Government (Wales) Measure 2011.

Note:

a. Members are reminded that they must 
identify the item number and subject matter 
that their interest relates to and signify the 
nature of the personal interest; and 

b. Where Members withdraw from a meeting 
as a consequence of the disclosure of a 
prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chair when they leave. 

3. Social Enterprise Developments 
To consider report of the Corporate Director Place 
and Transformation. 

(Pages 1 - 12)

4. Performance Board - Community Regeneration 
To consider report of the Corporate Director 
People and Performance.

(Pages 13 - 20)

5. Scrutiny Referrals, Feedback and Follow Up 
Actions 
To receive any referrals from the other Scrutiny 
Committees and Audit Committee; an update from 
the Chair on their attendance at the Service 
Performance Challenge Meetings and to consider 
any follow up actions from the previous 
meeting(s).

6. Reflection and Evaluation of Meeting 
To receive an update from the Chair. 

7. Annual Work Programme 
See attached report (Pages 21 - 38)



8. Any Other Business deemed urgent by the Chair 

COMPOSITION: Councillor G Jones (Chair)

Councillors: B Carter, H Barrett, S P Brown, 
E Galsworthy, K Moran and M O'Neill

Co-optee(s): M K Jones and H Jackson

together with appropriate officers

If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725203

Os byddai’n well gennych gopi o’r agenda hwn mewn iaith arall, cysylltwch a 
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk neu ffoniwch 01685 725203

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk
mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street, 
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen

Social Enterprise Developments 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT

1.1 The development of the social enterprise and third sectors via the implementation of 
Merthyr Tydfil’s social enterprise strategy one of the key outcomes of the Economic 
Growth Plan. The purpose of this report is to provide Scrutiny with an overview of the 
key aims/objectives of the Social Enterprise strategy

1.2 The report will also provide an overview of the SEWCED Legacy – and the continued 
impact of Investment and how SEWCED funded organisations    have developed 
since the programme ended.

1.3 An overview of the new EU programmes is also provided along with detail regarding 
the efforts of Community Regeneration has made in terms of ensuring that Local 
Social Enterprises are made aware of and access new programmes moving forward. 

1.4 The report will conclude with an overview of the Social Services and Well-Being Act 
and the opportunities for Social Enterprises.             

2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1 That the scrutiny committee discusses and comments on the issues set out 
within the report. 

2.2 Review of voluntary sector mapping exercise in partnership with business 
change in order to identify potential opportunities that could be afforded to the 
sector

2.3 Review the Draft Strategy with the view of prioritising its Strategic Aims aligned 
to Government policy

Date Written 8th April 2016 
Report Author Alison Reddy/ Chris Long
Service Area Performance and Scrutiny 
Committee Date 19th April 2016 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

3.1 Up until September 2015 Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council has had a 
dedicated team of officers and programme available to support the social enterprise 
sector.  
Under the 2000–2006 Objective 1 Programme there were three initiatives totalled 
approximately £793,371:

 - Growing Social Enterprise
- Growing to Succeed
- Cyfarthfa Enterprises – A Social Economy Trading Model 

3.2 The 2007-2014 Convergence programme saw Merthyr Tydfil County Borough 
Council act as the lead on behalf of the South East region for the £13million South 
East Wales Community Economic Development (SEWCED) programme with just 
over £2.2 million available locally to support the sector. 

3.3 Since 2005 Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council has also been responsible for 
the co-ordination and facilitation of a Social Enterprise Network (SEN), a steering 
group consisting of local organisations and support agencies. The SEN acts as the 
local body representing the interests of all organisations operating in the Social 
Economy sector.  This forum has played an essential role in bringing together all 
key partners who provide services, generate wealth and contribute to a successful 
and sustainable social economy sector within the County Borough. 

3.4 The SEN over the years has hosted numerous events within the County Borough 
and in 2015 in partnership with Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council started to 
develop a new Social Enterprise Strategy and accompanying action plan.

3.5 Towards the end of the 2015 Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council started work 
on the development of a successor programme to replace the SEWCED, however 
changes in government policy regarding management and delivery models on how 
structural Funds programmes must be implemented meant that Local Authorities 
were no longer able to directly manage any European Regional Development Fund 
(ERDF) EU programmes delivering financial support to organisations. This change 
resulted in the loss of Councils regional social enterprise team consisting of 4 
members of staff and 3 members of staff from the local team. 

3.6 Taking into consideration the loss of staff and lack of a local social enterprise 
programme Merthyr Tydfil’s Social Economy sector, the view was taking by the 
SEN and ourselves that the Strategy development would be placed on hold until a 
point in time we were clear on the way forward. It is recognised though the sector    
is still very much a priority that features within the Corporate Plan as well as there 
being a requirement for us as an authority to support the sector in line with the 
Social Services and Well-being Act.

4.0 WHERE WE WERE – DRAFT SOCIAL ENTERPRISE STRATEGY 
2014

4.1 The key aims/objectives of the strategy

Page 2



4.2 The vision set out in the 2015 Draft Social Enterprise Strategy for Merthyr Tydfil 
County Borough aspires to a dynamic and sustainable social enterprise sector 
contributing to a stronger economy and changing people’s life chances for the better.  
The vision is based around 4 Strategic Outcomes which are:

1. Strengthen & Foster a sustainable Culture of Social Enterprise Support 
Structures

2. Social Enterprises access support structure that promote Learning, Skills 
Development and Entrepreneurialism 

3. Social Enterprises are encouraged to make a strong and measurable 
contribution to Grow and Sustain Merthyr Tydfil’s Economy  

4. Encourage social enterprises to take an active role with the public, private and 
3rd sectors in the delivery of public services 

5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW – SEWCED LEGACY & THE CONTINUED 
IMPACT OF THE INVESTMENT 

5.1 As outlined in the evaluation of the SEWCED carried out by Miller Research in July 
2015 the project regionally achieved its aim. Initial output targets were exceed, the 
supported enterprises created tangible impacts that were a direct result of SEWCED 
support – estimated to be worth in the region of £2.1m to £2.9m in net contribution to 
regional GDP and between 221 and 247 full time-equivalent jobs supported in the 
region (119 gross jobs were created by the programme). 

5.2 What is more, the evaluation suggested that without SEWCED support, many of the 
outputs and thus outcome / impacts would not have been realised.  From the Local 
perspective almost all of the Social Enterprises supported through the SEWCED 
programme indicated their enterprise increased direct employment and increased 
engagement with their customers and community. If they had not received funding 
the organisations believe they would not have reached the same economic outputs. 
(See attached appendix for a full list of Social Enterprises supported through 
SEWCED)          

5.3 The SEWCED programme contributed towards most of the Social Enterprises 
journey towards sustainability. Significantly, almost all respondents stated the 
support had reduced their grant dependancy to some degree. However, there are 
instances where the end of the programme has had a negative effect on a business; 
for example, being so close to sustainability but the removal of the funds has 
resulted in staff contracts being changed, opening hours being reduced and the 
potential need to close.

5.4 Many of the Enterprises have used the funding to kick start changes within their 
organisations, with a culture of adopting a more commercial approach achieving 
increased production capacity and effectiveness with which to secure new products 
and/or customers.

5.6 After holding follow up meetings with the Enterprises at the end of the programme, it 
was highlighted that they still need:

 Additional funding in the future to develop new elements of their businesses

 A local contact for general advice and monitoring

 Signposting to relevant opportunities
Page 3



5.7 Overall, the greatest impact of the programme was in creating economic and social 
benefits and in particular, improving community services and increasing sales / 
turnover. The majority of the organisations supported had improved financial 
sustainability to some effect and the programme supported in the creation of 
employment and business development opportunities.

5.8 The Social Enterprise Network (SEN) met in December 2015 and agreed that there 
is some mileage to continue meeting in order to co-ordinate, signpost and promote 
the sector at a local level. Community Regeneration is committed to acting as 
secretariat for this group moving forward.

5.9 In addition to this it was agreed at the SEN meeting in December that an event be 
held in order to new opportunities available to the sector that have been funded 
through the 2014 -2020 ERDF programme and administered by Wales Co-op and 
WCVA. The event took place in March 2016; however despite extensive publicity the 
turnout was limited but ongoing meetings with the Social Enterprises are being held.

6.0 CURRENT SUPPORT AVAILABLE TO THE SOCIAL ENTERPRISE 
SECTOR 

6.1 As previously stated, changes in policy in relation to management and delivery 
models on how structural funds programmes must be implemented has meant that 
Local Authorities no longer directly manage any programmes specifically targeting 
social enterprise. The following programmes outlines below are the key programmes 
available to the sector in Wales. Community Regeneration continually sign post to 
these programmes:

SE-Assist Wales
6.2 SE-Assist Wales is an innovative social investment initiative. Supported by non-

financial business advisory and mentoring support the initiative provides an essential 
source of community focused growth capital.

6.3 Administered by CAF Venturesome, Legal & General has provided fund capital for 
the programme which is also supported by Welsh Government, the Wales Co-
operative Centre, Business in the Community and the Institute of Directors.

6.4 In regenerating the UK’s communities, social enterprises are a vital force, creating 
much needed job opportunities and a vibrant, diverse and inclusive local economy. 
Social enterprises often work in the most disadvantaged communities, bringing 
social and significant economic benefits.

6.5 SE-Assist works by combining 3 support mechanisms:

 interest free loan capital
 dedicated business mentoring
 expert advisory services

WCVA 
6.6 The Wales Micro-business Loan Fund is a Welsh Government investment through 

Finance Wales to support small and medium sized enterprises.

Page 4



6.7 The Fund is investing a total of £6 million in small loans until 2018, with £1 million 
ring-fenced for social enterprises looking to develop their revenue generating 
activities.

6.8 The social enterprise element is managed by WCVA in partnership with the 
Coalfields Regeneration Trust and Cardiff & Vale Credit Union (representing ABCUL 
Credit Unions).

6.9 Loans of between £1,000 and £50,000 are available will a maximum repayment 
period of five years.

Social Business Wales
6.10 Social Business Wales. Social Business Wales is funded by the European Regional   

Development Fund and Welsh Government. It is delivered by the Wales Co 
operative Centre as part of the Business Wales service.

6.11 Operating as part of the wider Welsh Government and EU funded Business Wales 
service, which provides a ‘one stop shop’ for entrepreneurs and small and medium 
sized enterprises (SMEs) wishing to start and grow their business in Wales, the 
project will offer specialist services to help social businesses expand their products, 
services and markets. It will also help charities to establish trading arms to take 
forward commercial ideas, and support businesses and organisations that want to 
adopt co-operative or employee-owned business models.

7.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE  / SOCIAL SERVICES & WELLBEING ACT

7.1 Emerging legislation, such as the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 
calls for public services that collaborate, integrate their services with the user in 
mind, consider the long-term impact of their actions, involve people in decisions and 
focus more on preventing problems from occurring or getting worse. This involves 
empowering people and communities to work with the public sector and voluntary 
sector, in helping each other to secure the long-term wellbeing of Wales.

7.2 The Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014 (SSWBA) reinforces this wider 
policy framework by setting out in its regulations and codes of practice a duty on 
Local Authorities to encourage the growth and development of not for profit business 
models.

7.3 The SSWBA contains broad and inclusive definitions of social enterprise and third 
sector organisation and makes it clear that the intention is to support the growth of 
social enterprises, co-operative organisations or arrangements, user led services 
and third sector organisations, and not to set in law any new definitions of these 
approaches and models. 

7.4 It is noted that, whilst a definition of a social enterprise is understood (i.e. a business 
with social objectives whose left-over profits are reinvested for that purpose in the 
business or the community, instead of raising profit for shareholders and owners), 
the term is used within the SSWBA to encompass the more general (and bigger) 
social economy. 

Page 5



7.5 The SSWBA (and wider policy framework) states that Local Authorities have a vital 
role to create the right environment through which people with an interest in the 
support of a population in a local area can come together to create the support that 
they need. 

7.6 The role of Local Authorities should, therefore, include: creating an environment 
locally to promote user voice and control at every level; and raising awareness about 
the role that social enterprises, co-operatives, co-operative arrangements, user led 
services and the third sector can play in achieving the policy objectives of the Act. 

7.7 This requires a more open approach to identifying common opportunities and flexible 
arrangements for planning, promoting and delivering services. Although this will be 
challenging in some services, this will place more emphasis on promoting the right 
balance of resource efficiency and community benefit. 

7.8 The social economy is considered to be able to offer the potential to improve the 
economic, environmental and social well-being of communities. Specifically with 
regards to its: 

 Contribution to socially inclusive wealth creation;
 Ability to enable individuals and communities to work towards regenerating their local 

neighbourhoods in a sustainable way;
 Ability to show new ways to deliver and reform public services;
 Ability to help develop an inclusive society and active citizenship;
 Ability to enhance service provision in areas where private and public sector 

provision is threatened or lacking;
 Ability to provide employment opportunities for individuals experiencing labour 

market exclusion;
 Ability to provide vehicles for community participation; and
 Ability to supply goods and services to local authorities.

7.9 In terms of the act, Community Regeneration have been involved in working with 
colleagues in RCT as part of a task and finish group to explore the merits of making 
a joint public commitment to supporting and promoting the social economy in the 
form of a statement of strategic intent. 

8.0 CONTRIBUTION TO CORPORATE PRIORITIES

8.1 Within the Corporate Plan 2013 – 2017 social enterprise features as a priority under 
the Economic Growth Plan. The strategy outlines that we will: 

- Develop a new social enterprise strategy
- Develop a work programme that social enterprises are fully supported to fulfil 

their social and business objectives.

8.2 The process of revising the 2014 draft strategy is currently underway, but in the 
absence of a direct programme for the sector or dedicated officer, short of 
signposting the impact that can be had by MTCBC is limited. The continued 
facilitation of the SEN partnership is one of the main means of supporting the sector.

Page 6



ELLIS COOPER
CORPORATE DIRECTOR PLACE AND 
TRANSFORMATION

COUNCILLOR CHRIS BARRY
PORTFOLIO MEMBER REGENERATION, 

PLANNING AND COUNTRYSIDE

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location

List the Background 
documents which have 
been relied on in 
preparing the report. 
E.g. previous minutes of 
relevant committees

Draft Social Enterprise 
Strategy

Social Services and 
Wellbeing Act

Unit 5

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution? 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 9

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre Castle Street

Merthyr Tydfil CF47 8AN

Main Tel:  01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen

Performance Board – Community Regeneration

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT

1.1 This information report outlines the key issues covered during a recent meeting of 
the local authority’s Performance Board.  The Performance Board is the key driver 
for the leadership of performance and quality improvement across the Council.

1.2 As part of the Council's commitment to improving outcomes and securing continuous 
improvement across all service areas, there has been a greater focus on how we 
carry out self-evaluation for securing quality improvement.

1.3 The COMMUNITY REGENERATION Performance Board took place on 03 
February 2016.  The default self-evaluation questions provide the structure for the 
session, which was the framework for challenge.  These questions consider 
outcomes; barriers; corporate support services; value for money and people 
management.

1.4 Through discussion with the Chief Officer, the Performance Team provides 
recommendations on key actions that need to be prioritised; ensure details on how 
these actions are to be undertaken are clear and specific and identify the service 
area or officer that has the lead responsibility.

2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1 That the Regeneration, Planning and Countryside Scrutiny Committee schedule a 
reoccurring agenda item in their forward work programme to monitor the delivery of 
the agreed action points detailed in this report.

Date Written 10 February 2016
Report Author Maria Purnell
Service Area Performance and Scrutiny
Committee Date 19th April 2016

Page 13

Agenda Item 4

http://www.merthyr.gov.uk/


3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

3.1 The Local Authority’s Service Improvement Framework (SIF) outlines how we will 
discharge our general duty to secure continuous improvement by:

 Having a series of plans that set out the strategic priorities for Merthyr 
Tydfil; and

 Developing an understanding of how we manage performance when we 
deliver our plans.

3.2 The purpose of the Performance Board is to create an arena where senior officers 
and elected members can discuss and challenge performance on a diverse range of 
service improvement related topics.  The Performance Board also acts as the Project 
Executive for performance improvement focused projects commissioned by the 
Council.

3.3 The Performance Board brings together senior officers and Elected Members to 
discuss and challenge the Chief Officers and Heads of Service against:

 Outcomes;
 Delivery of their service;
 Value for money; and
 People management

3.4 Representing Community Regeneration at the Performance Board meeting on 
Wednesday 03 February 2016 was Chief Officer (Alyn Owen) and Regeneration 
Programme Manager (Zoe Thomas).  The Chair for this challenge session was the 
Director for People and Performance, Lorraine Buck.  Appendix 1 provides a full list 
of invited officers and attendees along with their attendance status.

4.0 PERFORMANCE BOARD MEETING SUMMARY

4.1 The Chair outlined the purpose of the Performance Board and stated that, as an 
organisation, MTCBC was working to become more outcome focussed: this focus 
being on the positive impact made to communities, rather than the delivery of 
activities.

4.2 The following table offers an overview of the rating ascribed by the Service Lead in 
the 3 primary heading areas within the Self Evaluation Report (SER) at the start of 
the session:

KEY QUESTION JUDGEMENT

1 Outcomes Good
2 Provision Adequate
3 Leadership and Management Good
OVERALL JUDGMENT Adequate

Page 14



4.3 In the course of questioning, the Chair covered each of the key questions outlined 
above with the following additional information noted.

Are you on track to achieve your outcomes?

4.4 The Chief Officer stated the team was on track to achieve outcomes.  Discussion on 
the service's arrival at the judgment (Good) took place.  The Chief Officer identified 
the task of determining a judgement for outcomes was difficult because of ongoing 
changes.

4.5 Challenge around the disconnect between the Economic Growth strategy and 
outcomes for the community took place, it was acknowledged that not using the 
measures within the strategy to understand outcomes now  needed to be addressed.  
By undertaking this task, the findings would inform the way in which the Community 
Regeneration work programme can plan to meet the need of the community and to 
align with the Wellbeing of Future Generations Act; and particularly to reflect how 
this work impacts  on the Wellbeing Goal ‘a Prosperous Wales’.

4.6 The Chief Officer reported that a 3-stage process was underway to identify areas of 
co-ordination of data and information analysis to enable a full picture of activities 
supporting community regeneration across Merthyr Tydfil.  The 3 areas were:

i. Direct service co-ordination (linked to programmes/projects under the direct 
control of MTCBC’s Economic Regeneration team);

ii. Co-ordination of all service areas across the local authority, which impact on 
economic indicators; and

iii. The collective co-ordination of partnership works outside of the local authority 
that impact on the economic indicators.

4.7 The Chief Officer noted the recent conclusion of works to collate information linked to 
the first stage of the 3-stage process and went on to indicate that when the full 
process is complete (July 2016), that the self-evaluation report could be revisited and 
refined.

Can you give an example of where outcomes are good?

4.8 The Chief Officer advised that measures in their service areas linked to specific 
programmes (e.g. Viable & Vibrant Places programme) and were good, evidenced in 
a matrix to demonstrate output linked to the 24 individual projects.  The 
Regeneration Programme Manager confirmed programmes were starting to reflect 
the support offered and beginning to assist sustainability.

4.9 The panel noted the positive messages were good; however, there was a need to 
ensure that the reasons for their successes are secure and how the service 
contributes to improving outcomes for communities.  The Chair recommended the 
service develop this area to evidence a clear impact on communities; the Chief 

Page 15



Officer agreed with this suggestion.  Section 5.1 of this report includes an action to 
progress this.

Can you give an example of an unsatisfactory outcome?

4.10 The Chief Officer gave the example of a key area of concern: the fact that only 2.8 
years supply of housing land remained in Merthyr Tydfil, which was affecting private 
housing sector developers building properties within Merthyr Tydfil.

4.11 The Chair queried how this was being addressed; the Chief Officer reported work 
was currently ongoing between the Economic Growth team and MTCBC’s Planning 
team to look at the Local Development Plan to establish land owner by the Authority 
so they can consider options going forward.

Can you give an example of a preventative service linked to outcomes?

4.12 The Chief Officer offered the example of the social enterprise activity undertaken at 
the Merthyr Tydfil Football Club.  The discussion revealed that relevant metrics to 
understand the operation of the social enterprise were in place and collected; 
however, the metrics were not currently analysed to understand outcomes for the 
community.  This will be a task taken forward as part of the action (outcomes for 
communities) noted in section 5.2.

Are there barriers that are preventing you from achieving outcomes?

4.13 The Chief Officer noted 3 key barriers to improvement that were likely to adversely 
affect the local authority achieving its ambition:

 The requirement to ensure there was clear articulation of outcomes for our 
communities.  The Chief Officer noted that within MTCBC there was no vehicle in 
place to support this articulation across/within the Council.

 Issues linked to the willingness of external partners to contribute to co-ordination 
of activity.  The Chief Officer offered an example of the College in Merthyr Tydfil 
and explained Welsh Government’s rules linked to the delivery of the 
programmes funded appeared to lead to the College focussing on programme 
outcomes rather than community.

 The issue that some externally funded projects do not contain a revenue fund to 
support administration of the project.  The Regeneration Programme Manager 
confirmed the loss of externally funded posts meant that there was a greater 
chance of additional areas of pressure arising.  The Chief Officer confirmed that 
to respond to this, the Economic Development team had been required to change 
the way in which it worked.

4.14 Following a discussion, there was agreement that an action be set to explore the 
barriers linked to Merthyr Tydfil College and to identify what the service will do to 
overcome the barriers.  (Section 5.3)

How well supported are you by Corporate Services to achieve your outcomes?

Page 16



4.15 There was discussion around how Corporate Services supported the service.  The 
Chief Officer stated positive working relationships had been developed with 
colleagues in Finance; Legal; Planning and the Estates department.  It was noted 
that limited support was received from HR at present; however, matched the Chief 
Officer’s expectations.

Value for Money

4.16 The Chair queried whether Finance department offered support linked to value for 
money (i.e. ensuring effectiveness and efficiency).  The Chief Officer stated although 
support was received from Finance, no support was received in this sense.  The 
Chair noted that until the refocus exercise to identify clear community outcomes was 
completed, it might be difficult to undertake any assessment of value for money.

4.17 Following discussion, there was agreement for the service to undertake a piece of 
work, with the support of the Corporate Improvement Team, to look at the business 
support element of the service's activity.  This exercise aims to ensure intelligence 
more explicitly links to the Viable and Vibrant Places project.  (Section 5.3)

Staff leadership and management within your service area

4.18 The Chair queried how discussions in one-to-one meetings were linked to outcomes 
rather than outputs.  The Chief Officer confirmed one-to-ones enabled all staff to 
understand how their role fed into the Economic Growth Strategy.  The Regeneration 
Programme Manager acknowledged that strong links to programmes existed and 
there was now an identified need to develop the format of one to one sessions to 
reflect the outcomes.

4.19 The topic of accountability was discussed; the Chief Officer confirmed the 
architecture was still being defined but that he was happy to be held accountable for 
Economic Growth providing there was a clear overview of accountability in relation to 
the ‘Employability’ section of Social Regeneration being transferred across to 
Community Regeneration.  Councillor Chris Barry confirmed this tallied with his 
expectations regarding accountability in this area of the local authority’s activity 
sitting with the Chief Officer.  It was confirmed this would only be an option within the 
Local Authority’s structure (e.g. we could not hold a partners to account in the same 
way).

4.20 Discussion around the difference between leadership and management took place; it 
was noted that managers offered a high level of support, advice and guidance to 
support project delivery.  It was confirmed the Self Evaluation Report focused 
primarily on management and less on leadership and leading the service for positive 
community outcomes.  The judgment for this area would be adjusted from Good to 
Adequate to reflect this.

5.0 ACTIONS

5.1 Following challenge from the Performance Board, the areas for further improvement 
are noted below:

1. Outcomes for Communities

Page 17



(What the outcomes are, how the outcomes will be measured and how progress 
will be tracked)

2. Barriers preventing Achievement of Outcomes
3. Demonstrating Value for Money

5.2 Outcomes for Communities

Action:  Review the existing systems to ensure the collection of data to reflect not 
only programme outcomes but also positive outcomes for communities

Specific details:  The service is to work with colleagues in Corporate Improvement 
over the next 6 months to review the data collected to revisit the outcomes currently 
in place and ensure these are developed to more explicitly demonstrate outcomes 
for communities.  This process will ensure the outcomes in place have clear lines of 
accountability and the impact on communities is clearly demonstrated.  This action 
also links to the wider agenda of the organisation improvement strategy. 

Lead officer:  Alyn Owen

5.3 Barriers Preventing Achievement of Outcomes

Action:  Review the existing partnership arrangements with The College, Merthyr 
Tydfil to identify existing barriers and produce a Plan to improve the local authority’s 
abilities to hold partners to account to deliver agreed priorities.

Specific details:  The service is to work with colleagues in Corporate Improvement 
over the next 6 months to review the partnership working arrangements currently in 
place between the local authority and The College, Merthyr Tydfil to identify the key 
factors, which had led to a loss of buy-in and contribution to co-ordination of activity.  
This should be completed and a plan developed to practically address any issues 
and improve the local authority’s ability to hold The College, Merthyr Tydfil to 
account to deliver on agreed priorities.

Lead officer(s):  Alyn Owen/Chris Long

5.4 Demonstrating Value for Money

Action:  Review existing systems to maximise opportunities to sharpen links 
between business support activities; any and all data captured and outcomes 
claimed

Specific details:  The service is to work with colleagues in Corporate Improvement 
over the next 6 months to review the data currently collected linked to the business 
support element of the service’s activity.  This exercise aims to ensure the 
intelligence gathered more explicitly demonstrates links to service recipient 
outcomes and value for money received as part of the Viable and Vibrant Places 
programme.  

Lead officer:  Zoe Thomas

Page 18



6.0 NEXT STEPS

6.1 Following discussion, it was agreed at the Performance Board the final status of the 
Self Evaluation Report in its current form will be slightly amended as follows:

KEY QUESTION JUDGEMENT

1 Outcomes Adequate
2 Provision Adequate
3 Leadership and Management Adequate
OVERALL JUDGMENT Adequate

6.2 The service, to progress the actions outlined in Section 5 with the support from 
Corporate Improvement, ensuring updates on progress to the Regeneration, 
Planning and Countryside Scrutiny Committee.

6.3 Chair outlined a report on the findings of the Economic Growth Performance Board 
would be prepared and submitted to Scrutiny; Cllr Barry advised this would take 
place in 4-weeks (08/03/2016).  The Corporate Improvement Team would ensure the 
report be ready in line with required deadlines to meet this date.

7.0 CONTRIBUTION TO CORPOATE PRIORITIES

7.1 This report does not require any decisions that have any financial implications for the 
local authority.

LORRAINE BUCK
CORPORATE DIRECTOR:  PEOPLE & 
PERFORMANCE

COUNCILLOR PHIL WILLIAMS
GOVERNANCE & CORPORATE 

SERVICES

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location

Does the report contain any issue that may 
impact the Council’s Constitution? NO

Page 19



Appendix 1

MTCBC PERFORMANCE BOARD 03/02/2016:  Economic Growth

List of Invited Officers/Attendees

Name Designation Attended Apologies Did Not 
Attend

Lorraine Buck Corporate Director – People 
and Performance, MTCBC



Ellis Cooper Corporate Director – Place 
and Transformation, MTCBC



Gareth Chapman Chief Executive, MTCBC 
Cllr Phil Williams Cabinet Member –Governance 

and Corporate Services, 
MTCBC



Cllr Chris Barry Cabinet Member with Portfolio 
for Regeneration, Planning 
and Countryside



Cllr Tom Lewis Chair of MTCBC’s 
Governance, Performance, 
Business Change and 
Corporate Services Scrutiny 
Committee



Cllr Gareth Jones Chair of MTCBC’s 
Regeneration, Planning and 
Countryside Scrutiny 
Committee, MTCBC



Alyn Owen Chief Officer – Community 
Regeneration, MTCBC



Zoe Thomas Regeneration Programme 
Manager, MTCBC



Chris Long Economic Development & 
Strategic Tourism Manager, 
MTCBC



Ewan McWilliams Corporate Performance 
Manager, MTCBC



Maria Purnell Corporate Improvement 
Officer, MTCBC



In Attendance:

Name Designation/Organisation
Ann-Marie McCafferty Corporate Improvement Officer, MTCBC
Alison Jones Auditor - Welsh Audit Office

Page 20



Civic Centre, Castle Street, 
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk

SCRUTINY REPORT

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen

Scrutiny Committee Work Programme

1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1 To provide the Scrutiny Committee with its work programme for consideration and to 
prepare in advance for the next scrutiny committee meeting.

2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1 The Committee considers its work programme and approve, revise or amend it as 
deemed appropriate; and to consider the questions above in planning for the next 
meeting.

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND
3.1 Scrutiny committees are required to prepare and keep under review a programme for 

their future work. By reviewing and prioritising issues, members are able to ensure 
that the work programme delivers a member-led agenda. 

3.2 At each meeting the committee will agree the agenda items for their next meeting 
and in preparation may in advance wish to ask itself the following questions.

Q) Why has the item been placed on a scrutiny work programme?
a. Does this item/topic contribute to the delivery of the Council’s Corporate Plan 

and priorities?
b. Is this item/topic relating to service performance concerns?
c. Is this item/topic of significant public interest?
d. Has the item/topic got budgetary implications?

Date Written 12th April 2016
Report Author Scrutiny Section
Service Area Legal & Governance Services
Committee Division Scrutiny 
Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt
Committee Date 19th April 2016

Page 21

Agenda Item 7



e. Is this a item/topic where Scrutiny involvement will make a significant 
difference and achieve tangible outcomes?

f. Can effective Scrutiny of this issue be delivered from within available 
resources?

Q) What is the specific role of the committee?
           This will depend on the item – for example the role could be:

a. to determine if performance levels are acceptable in relation to a particular 
department

b. to determine if a specific policy is fit for purpose
c. to satisfy itself that the Authority is working well with its partners in tackling a 

major issue 
d. to gather the views of specific stakeholders as part of an on-going scrutiny 

investigation / review
e. to explore possible solutions to an issue

Q) What outcome is the committee seeking from the consideration of this 
item?

a. To comment on the proposed budget and make suggestions to cabinet 
regarding the proposed budget’s ability to deliver the priorities of the council 

b. Identification of any causes for concern and note successes.
c. To receive an overview presentation.
d. To gain an understanding of and to comment on a policy / strategy
e. To explore ideas around the setting of budgets while considering the 

pressures facing each service. This also helps provide an overview of the 
policy frame work. 

f. For the scrutiny committee to gain an overview and refresh their knowledge of 
the corporate plan / other plan / other strategy.

g. Improvement in service delivery

Q) What information does the committee need to fulfil this role / achieve 
this outcome? 
What is the Committee trying to do? You might be trying to do some or all of 
the following i.e. establish facts; gather opinions; or explore new ideas / 
solutions.

Q) Who should be invited to the meeting to provide the information?
Depending on the information you need you might want to hear from a range 
of witnesses – e.g. Cabinet members, Senior Officers, Service users, and 
External partners – e.g. Police,  Health Board etc

Q) Does the committee need to ask for written representations?
The Committee may wish to pose some questions to the Directorate / Cabinet 
member / External Partner etc prior to the meeting. This may help in instances 
when the committee is looking for something specific to be addressed. This 
will assist whoever is attending ensure that they have the information / answer 
ready for the meeting. 

Q) Which meeting format / venue would be most appropriate for the item 
and for the witnesses that will be invited to attend?
Meetings do not have to be held in a formal committee room environment. 
You may wish to hold occasional meetings out in the community e.g. 

Page 22



community centres, sports facilities etc. It depends on the subject. Some 
people find the formal setting intimidating. Site visits for example may be more 
appropriate to see first-hand what the committee is investigating / obtaining 
information on e.g. waste sites, regeneration projects etc.

3.3 Committees members will be aware that the Council has seven key priorities as per 
the Corporate Plan. These are:- 1) Raising Standards of Attainment; 2) 
Employability;  3) Economic Development;  4) Promoting Active Lifestyles;  5) 
Promoting Independence; 6) Meeting the Needs of Vulnerable Children and 7)  A 
Sustainable Environment.

The seven Council priority areas are delivered through 4 themes, and each of the 4 
Chief Officers has ownership and responsibility for one of these themes. The 4 
themes are:-

 Raising Standards - (Chief Officer for Learning/ Cabinet member for 
Learning) 
Learning & LAESCYP Scrutiny Committee

 Improving Wellbeing - (Chief Officer for Social Services / Cabinet member 
for Social Services)
Social Services Scrutiny Committee

 Economic Growth - (Chief Officer for Community Regeneration / Cabinet 
member for Regeneration, Planning and Countryside)
Regeneration, Planning & Countryside Scrutiny Committee

 Sustainable Development - (Chief Officer for Neighbourhood Services / 
Cabinet member for Neighbourhood Services and Public Protection)
Neighbourhood Services and Public Protection Scrutiny Committee

3.4 To reflect the 4 themes as per above in a convenient form, 4 “strategies on a page” 
have been developed and each reflects Measures of Success; Desired Outcomes 
and Strategic Aims and Objectives.

3.5 Much of Scrutiny committee work programme activity is aligned to the delivery of the 
Council’s corporate priorities and the “strategies of a page” can assist scrutiny 
committees in this role. See appendix I for the “strategies of a page”.

3.6 A copy of the Committees work programme is also attached.

Scrutiny Section
MTCBC

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution? No

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



Measures of Success

Raising Standards

Desired Outcomes

Strategic Aims 

All learners attain at least
the expected standard at all

stages in their education

Vision:

AIM 1: Improve the quality of
leadership including the leadership
of learning and teaching

AIM 2: Improve LA and
commissioned services

Leadership in all schools
is good or better

All members of the
education community

collaborate well in order
to improve the standards
and wellbeing of pupils

Teaching in all schools
is good or better

LA provision improves 
standards of attainment 

and the quality of
leadership and teaching 

in schools

P
age 25



Specific Measurable Outcomes - Measures of Success

Improving Wellbeing

Desired Outcomes

Strategic Aims & Objectives:

Social Services:
- Children
- Adults
- Safeguarding

We will help people in
Merthyr Tydfil to maximise their
potential, be free from poverty,

be independent and healthy
and to live in supportive and

resilient communities.
People in Merthyr Tydfil 

will be able to lead 
independent and 

fulfilled lives.
Vulnerable children in 

Merthyr Tydfil live 
healthy, safe and fulfilled 

lives.

People in Merthyr Tydfil 
are physically active and 

as a result have 
improved health.

Vision:

P
age 26



Economic	  Growth	  Plan	  
	  
	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   	  Vision	  	  	  	  

Priority	  Area	  	   The	  Business	  Base	  	   Baseline	  
	  (year)	   Target	  	   	  	   Priority	  Area	  	   The	  Labour	  Market	  	   Baseline	  

(year)	   Target	  	   	  	   Priority	  Area	  	   Skills	  	   Baseline	  
(year)	   Target	  	  

Key	  Indicator	  	   Count	  of	  birth	  of	  new	  
enterprises	  	   225	  (2013)	   300	   	  	   Key	  Indicator	  	   Economic	  Ac@vity,	  

Unitary	  Authori@es	  in	  
Wales	  	  

27833	  (2011)	   30000	   	  	   Key	  Indicator	  	   Level	  2	  Skills	  	   6682	   7000	  

Indicator	  	   VAT	  /	  PAYE	  Registered	  
Enterprise	  Births	  	   225	  (2013)	   300	   	  	   Indicator	  	   Average	  Gross	  Weekly	  

Earnings	  	   £477.60	  
(2014)	   £500	   	  	   Indicator	   Working	  Age	  PopulaLon	  

with	  level	  2	  qualificaLons	  
(2011)	  	  	  

6682	   7000	  

Indicator	  	   VAT	  /	  PAYE	  Registered	  
Enterprise	  Deaths	  	   135	  (2013)	   100	   	  	   Indicator	  	   Claimant	  Count	  Levels	  	   1,100	  (Mar	  2015)	   900	   	  	   Indicator	  	   Working	  Age	  PopulaLon	  

with	  no	  qualificaLons	  
(2011)	  

9963	   9000	  

	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	   Indicator	  	   Gross	  Disposal	  
Household	  Income	  Per	  
Head	  	  	  

£13,500	   £14000	   	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	  

	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	   Indicator	   Unemployment	  Levels	  
16	  +	  	   2000	   1600	   	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	  

	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	   Indicator	  	   Economic	  InacLvity	  
Levels	  16-‐64	  year	  olds	   7,900	   7,300	   	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	  

 

AIM 1: Develop a diverse 
and vibrant business 

base 

	  	  

AIM 2: Create a flexible, 
resilient and responsive 

labour market 	  

 
 

AIM 3:  Increase the 
quality and skills within 
the existing and future 

workforce necessary for 
effective business growth  

	  	  

 
 

AIM 4: Improve and create 
the right infrastructure to 

enable and accelerate 
business growth   

	  	  

Measurable	  Outcomes	  	  

Desired	  Outcomes	  	  

P
age 27



A Sustainable Environment

Vision
People in Merthyr Tydfil 
will live in communities 
that are sustainable, clean 
and energy efficient. 

Waste Management
Energy Management
Environmental Quality  - Cleaning / Fly Tipping / Litter
           - Air Quality
           - Noise

Flood Management
Planning & Countryside
Wildlife & Biodiversity
Parks & Open SpacesSpecific Measurable Outcomes - ‘Scores on Doors’

  - Measure of Success

Strategic Aims & Objectives -

Desired Outcomes -

Creation of more
‘Greener’ jobs

P
age 28



Regeneration, Planning and Countryside Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2015/16
(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change)

Version November 2015

30th June 2015 8th July 2015
SPECIAL

22nd September 2015 10th November 
2015

15th December 
2015

Corporate Items Development of Work 
Programme 2015/16

Production of a Local 
Development Plan (LDP) 
2006 to 2021

Economic Growth Plan 

Community and 
Economic  
Regeneration 

Annual Monitoring 
Report (AMR).

Production of a 
Local Development 
Plan (LDP) 2006 to 
2021

(Two above items 
will be in the form 
of 1 x combined 
report)

Policy Review & 
Development

Monitoring Reports 
/  Briefing Reports 

Awareness Raising – 
Committee’s Areas of 
Responsibility (Chief 
Officers and Heads of 
Service)

Transformation and 
Budget meeting. 

JOINT MEETING
(All Scrutiny 
Committees)

Housing Grants / DFG Taxi licensing
(Deferred to 26th 
January 2015)

P
age 29



Regeneration, Planning and Countryside Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2015/16
(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change)

Version November 2015

14th Jan. 2016 
SPECIAL

Now 27th Jan

26th January 2016 8th March 2016 19th April 2016 31st May 2016

Corporate Items Vibrant & Viable 
Places (AL, CL)

Destination 
Management Plan 
(AO, CL & CB)

Social Enterprise 
Developments 
(AO, CL & CB)

Policy Review & 
Development

Planning Dept. APR 
(Annual Performance 
Report) (JJ and HR)

Monitoring Reports /  
Briefing Reports 

Transformation;  
Budget Proposals 
2016/17

JOINT MEETING
All Scrutiny 
Committees

Taxi licensing (SP/PL)
(Deferred from 10th 
November) 

Housing Wales Act 
2014 – 1 year on. Performance Board 

– Community 
Regeneration
(Chris Long, Zoe Thomas, 
Cllr Chris Barry. Maria 
Purnell)

Effectiveness Of 
Scrutiny & Audit 
Annual Report

P
age 30



Regeneration, Planning & Countryside Scrutiny Committee 
Work Programme 2015/16

Meeting Date Subject Invitees Theme Scrutiny Focus
Housing 
Grants/DFG

(JP/SP) Value for 
money

Does the current approach to delivering DFG’s provide value 
for money?
Scrutiny & Challenge : A report providing 

(i) a more detailed analysis of performance over 4 
years comparing the top and bottom performance 
with the performance of  MTCBC and the Welsh 
average 

(ii) a view about whether the service provides value for 
money and 

(iii) whether the available funding can be used 
differently to address some of the challenges such 
as changing demography, the drive towards greater 
independence and the Independent Living Review 
2014/15

22nd September  2015

Local 
Development 
Plan (LDP) 
2006 to 2021 

(JJ/JW) Planning The LDP was adopted by Council in 2011 and covers the 
period from 2006 to 2021. 
Information  :  A report providing an explanation of the  LDP 
process:- 

(i) legislative requirements 
(ii) the purpose, its strategy and objectives 
(iii) the process required to develop it 
(iv) lessons learnt from the process leading up to the 

adoption of the current LDP

10th November 2015

Housing 
Grants/DFG

(JP/SP) Value for 
money

Does the current approach to delivering DFG’s provide value 
for money?
Scrutiny & Challenge : A report providing 

(i) a more detailed analysis of performance over 4 years 
comparing the top and bottom performance with the 
performance of  MTCBC and the Welsh average 

(ii) a view about whether the service provides value for money 
(how do you measure vfm re the different ongoing projects) 
and 

P
age 31



(iii) whether the available funding can be used differently to 
address some of the challenges such as changing 
demography, the drive towards greater independence and the 
Independent Living Review 2014/15

(iv) Re. the grants obtained what is the breakdown of overall 
scheme-costs as per
1. Dept Admin costs
2. Contractor costs
3. On site spend per unit. 
(Please provide actual £ figure and as a % breakdown). 

(v) Mechanism / criteria for awarding contracts ie tendering 
process?

(vi) Variations/virement once projects are underway? 
(vii) DFG items, how does the link with COTS operate in relation to 

identifying need, solutions and resolutions? What are the links 
made to risk assessments? Who does risk assessments for 
client and supply of equipment? How much input does any 
client have in the process?

Economic 
Growth Plan

AO, CL & 
CB

Economic 
Growth

Pre scrutiny. The Growth Plan being developed with a view 
to:  increase employment; encourage business growth and 
investment; tackle social disadvantage. The plan will link to 
local strategic aims in advancing an area’s economic well-
being, and underpins cross-cutting approaches to tackle 
deprivation as a result of industrial decline. This is an 
opportunity for scrutiny to comment on the plan before it is 
submitted to Cabinet/Council.

Th
is

 w
ill

 b
e 

in
 th

e 
fo

rm
 o

f 1
 c

om
bi

ne
d 

re
po

rt

Community 
and 
Economic  
Regeneration 

(AO) Grants and 
sustainabili
ty

What is the overarching strategy for community and economic 
growth and regeneration given the reduction in grants over 
the next 2 years  
Scrutiny & Challenge : A report detailing 

(i) the current strategy, key success factors and 
desired outcomes 

(ii) all current grant funded projects, how they support 
regeneration in MTCBC, their purpose, the amount 
and when the funding expires 

(iii) how remaining core funding and grants beyond 
2017, can provide a sustainable strategy and 
programme for the next 5 to 10 years

P
age 32



Taxi licensing
(Deferred)

(SP/PL) Licensing (i) Deregulation Act for taxi licensing 
(ii)Child sexual exploitation issues from Casey Report 

(Rotherham)
 

Scrutiny & Challenge: A report which provides details about 
the risks and issues for the Council and the wider public of 
the Deregulation Act, how these are being addressed and 
how the potential for child sexual exploitation can be reduced 
in relation to use of taxi’s and taxi procurement.

Annual 
Monitoring 
Report 
(AMR).

(J.J/JW) Planning Scrutiny & Challenge: The Annual Monitoring Report 
(AMR). The Planning & Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 
requires that an AMR is produced and submitted to WG at the 
end of October each year. The AMR reports on the success 
(or not) of the LDP in delivering/implementing policies.

Planning

15th December 2015

Th
es

e 
2 

ite
m

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
in

 th
e 

fo
rm

 o
f 1

 c
om

bi
ne

d 
re

po
rt

Local 
Developm
ent Plan 
(LDP) 
2006 to 
2021

(JJ/JW) The LDP was adopted by Council in 2011 and covers the 
period from 2006 to 2021. 
Information  :  A report providing an explanation of the  LDP 
process:- 

1. legislative requirements 
2. the purpose, its strategy and objectives 
3. the process required to develop it 
4. lessons learnt from the process leading up to the adoption of the 

current LDP
5. How is LDP influencing overall achievement of MTCBC's 'vision'?
6. Which elements are on track and which are not (with reasons for 

the latter). 
7. What criteria do you use to evaluate its success? ie. Targets?
8. How often is progress monitored?
9. How is this relayed to decision makers?
10. Can you provide statistical information on the 12 strategic 

objectives in the LDP?
11. Can you give a breakdown on the three types of policies – 

Borough, Area specific and topic based, What are they and what 
are barriers to success and what are the successes to date?

12. What are the perceived issues for the LDP during the revision 
period and beyond?

P
age 33



14th January 2016 (Joint)
Now 27th January

Budget 
Proposals 
2015/16

LCJ, EC, 
GC, LB

Joint 
Scrutiny

Scrutiny & Challenge : A report detailing the budget 
proposals for 2015/16 and the implications for the 4 year 
medium term financial plan

Vibrant & Viable 
Places

AO, CL Economic 
Growth

Scrutiny & Challenge : An update on the progress on 
delivery of the Vibrant and Viable Places Programme in 
Merthyr.  

The update will include detail on:
- project development and delivery 
- risks affecting the project approaching the end of year 
2
- sustainability of completed projects 
- value for money of current and additional projects
- delivery partner and stakeholder relationships 
- future plans for VVP 2 and evidence of need 
- Linkages with internal departments to aide / support 
           delivery

A further update will be provided on the LDP and how the 
revised LDP will enhance / affect current and future VVP 
Programme delivery.

26th January 2016

Taxi licensing
(Deferred from 
Nov meeting)

(SP/PL) Licensing Scrutiny & Challenge: A report which provides details about 
the risks and issues for the Council and the wider public of 
the Deregulation Act, how these are being addressed and 
how the potential for child sexual exploitation can be reduced 
in relation to use of taxi’s and taxi procurement.

(i) Deregulation Act for taxi licensing 
(ii) Child sexual exploitation issues from Casey Report 

(Rotherham)

8th March 2016

Destination 
Management 
Plan

(CL/Cllr C 
Barry)

Strategic 
Tourism

How does the DMP need to be refocused especially to 
include heritage and outdoor activity development?
Scrutiny& Challenge : A report detailing 

(i) progress delivering the current DMP and the 

P
age 34



outputs and outcomes 
(ii) why and how the plan needs to be refocused to 

better focus on heritage and outdoor activity 
(iii) Trends in terms of visitors to MTCBC, the length of 

stay in the area and the focus of activity. 
(iv) Partnership collaboration & engagement e.g. Trust 

(Castle/Cyfarthfa Park)

Housing Wales 
Act 2014 – 1 
year on.

JP/SP (Cllr 
C Barry)

Wellbeing Scrutiny& Challenge:- a summary/report of the impact of the 
2014 Act nearly 12 months from its enactment on service needs, 
performance and resources

19th April 2016

Social 
Enterprise 
Developments

AO, CL Economic 
Growth

Scrutiny & Challenge: A report on the Social Enterprise 
Strategy detailing: 

(i) The key aims/objectives of the strategy
(ii) SEWCED Legacy – The continued impact of the 
           Investment and how SEWCED funded organisations            

have developed since the programme ended. What 
their            requirements are moving forward. 

(iii) An overview of the new EU programmes. Including            
funding, business support. How the LA can help 
access            support. 

(iv) The current role of the Local Authority in growing the            
sector – local and regional networks. Signposting,            
business reviews and identifying opportunities.   

(i) Health and Wellbeing act – An outline. Opportunities 
for

           Social Enterprises.             

P
age 35



Performance 
Board – 
Community 
Regeneration

Chris 
Long, Zoe 
Thomas, 
Cllr Chris 
Barry. 
Maria 
Purnell

Performance Scrutiny & Challenge: A report outlines the key issues 
covered during a recent meeting of the local authority’s 
Performance Board.  

31st May 2016

To be confirmed
(was 19th April but both 
presenters unavailable on that 
date)

Planning - AMR 
(Annual 
Monitoring 
Report)

Judith 
Jones /  
Huw 
Roberts

Planning Scrutiny & Challenge: The AMR (Annual Monitoring 
Report), which was the subject at the 15th December 
committee meeting, assesses the delivery of the LDP and its 
policies. The APR (Annual Performance Report) is a separate 
report that Planning departments are now required to submit 
to Welsh Government which assesses the performance of 
Development Control in terms of determining planning 
applications and also reports on customer survey feedback.

To be confirmed

Following the 10th November  2015 there are two referrals that the Chair will take to the next Governance meeting:-

a) Issue around Internal Audit’s review of DFG’s. When last was an audit undertaken / when is one next expected.; and 
b) Discussion with the Chair of Social Services around the issues raised by JP on delays on the COT side.

 This was dealt with at the SS Scrutiny meeting (23rd feb) and the regeneration Scrutiny meeting (8th March). However this 
committee have placed the item on its work programme to consider the working relationship between COTs and the Housing 
Grants team (Is it effective / efficient – to look at the relationship in more detail)

To be confirmed (next 
year’s work programme)

Housing Services Update - Is the housing renewals programme helping to improve the wellbeing of affected 
residents
Scrutiny & Challenge : A report providing 

(i) a brief summary of the new allocations policy (not available - work on drafting one has only just started 
and will not be completed until next summer (2016)

(ii) issues affecting homelessness services and strategic partnership working/development - this is being 
covered in the Neighbourhood Services Scrutiny meeting of the 7th Dec 2015

P
age 36



To be confirmed

Performance Board Action Points (or whatever format it was in previously). Take action points / improvement 
areas and ensure placed on future work programme.

P
age 37



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Social Enterprise Developments
	Appendix I

	4 Performance Board - Community Regeneration
	7 Annual Work Programme
	Strategies on a page
	Regeneration Work Programme 2015- 16
	Regeneration Services Descriptors


